
 

 

September 23, 2015 

Page 1 

SILVERTHORNE TOWN COUNCIL  
Meeting Minutes  

Wednesday, September 23, 2015 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL/APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Those members present and answering Roll Call were Mayor Bruce Butler, Council Members 
Derrick Fowler, Peggy Long, Russ Camp, Stuart Richardson, and JoAnne Nadalin.  Ann-Marie 
Sandquist was absent.  Staff members present were, Assistant Town Manager Mark Leidal, 
Chief Mark Hanschmidt, Administrative Services Director Donna Braun, Recreation Director 
Joanne Cook, Public Works Director Bill Linfield, Planning Manager Matt Gennett, Zach 
Margolis Utilities Manager, Dan Gietzen Town Engineer, Town Attorney Matt Mire, and Town 
Clerk Michele Miller. 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by those present.  
 
STAFF COMMENTS: 
Cook updated Council on the Recreation Center reopening after the annual shutdown.  The 
pool will reopen September 27th.  
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
Long publicly thanked Officer David Siderfin for his successful efforts in assisting the SWAT 
Team during a domestic violence/suicide threat last week.   
Long thanked Kathy Marshall, Revenue Administrator, for all her efforts in preparing the Sales 
Tax Reports for the Town Council Packet.  
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS: 
None. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: 
RICHARDSON MOVED TO APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR INCLUDING THE 
MINUTES FROM SEPTEMBER 9, 2015 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING, REPLAT –THE CABINS AT 
ANGLER MOUNTAIN RANCH, FILING NO. 3 – FOURTH AMENDMENT.   MOTION SECONDED.  
MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY BY COUNCIL PRESENT. (SANDQUIST ABSENT) 
 
PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS: 
None.  
 
LIQUOR BOARD: 
 A. Pizza Hut – Renewal of 3.2% Beer on Premise Liquor License 
 
CAMP MOVED TO APPROVE PIZZA HUT – RENEWAL OF 3.2% BEER ON PREMISE LIQUOR 
LICENSE.  MOTION SECONDED.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY BY COUNCIL 
PRESENT. (SANDQUIST ABSENT) 



 

Town of Silverthorne Town Council Meeting Minutes 

September 23, 2015 

Page 2 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
A. Preliminary Subdivision Plan – South Maryland Creek Ranch (SMCR)– First 

Amendment 
Matt Gennett, Planning Manager, presented the applicant’s request for a Preliminary Plan 
approval.  The Preliminary Plan is in conformance with the SMCR Planned Unit Development 
(PUD) creating a residential neighborhood of two hundred forty residential units.  The proposal 
includes a twenty acre public park, a private lake, public and private trails and private 
amenities.  He reviewed the Preliminary Subdivision Comments by Colorado Geologic Survey 
(CGS) and their fourteen recommended conditions of approval, they consider necessary for 
site development.  He reviewed his staff report and requested approval with Planning 
Commission’s recommended conditions of approval.  
Public hearing opened. 
Butler asked what if the piezometer and inclinometer give a movement reading, what happens 
then.  
Richardson asked if the Town will receive the piezometer and inclinometer reports.  
Matt Mire, Town Attorney, reminded everyone the Town Council has already considered the 
potential for conflict of interest for Councilmember Long.  He asked Councilperson Long again 
if anything had changed in her circumstances.   
Long replied that nothing has changed in her circumstances.  
Applicant 
Tom Everist, Applicant, South Maryland Creek Ranch, thanked Council for their 
recommendations to take more time with the project and consider additional public comments.  
SMCR has been dealing with the Colorado Geological Survey regarding this property for 
twelve years; there is nothing in their letter that was a surprise.  He feels the process has 
worked well.  They have been very careful to work with consultants on the water issues.  They 
are comfortable with the Planning Commission’s conditions of approval.  In any development 
water is the enemy and they feel they have addressed all concerns.  He requested approval. 
Joanna Hopkins, South Maryland Creek Ranch Development Director, stated they spent the 
summer designing the project.  She introduced the SMCR team members.  Jason Andrews, 
Engineering Analytics, geotechnical engineer, Chris Durloo – Tetra Tech, civil engineer and 
Elena Scott – Norris Design, land planner.  Hopkins reviewed a PowerPoint presentation and 
the water drainage from the site.  
Nadalin asked about the location of the inclinometers on the site.  
Hopkins reviewed the location of the inclinometers.  They have fifteen years of control and 
monitoring from the inclinometers on this property.  Generally developments install 
inclinometers and then close them off but they have chosen not to. 
Council questions 
Butler asked if you cut into the site and there is shifting what recourse you have. 
Andrews stated if you see movement on the site, water, there are different ways to deal with it.  
Water is always a big issue on any development.  They would look at the water controls 
currently on the site and could provide extra drainage measures.  There are mechanical 
measures that could be used too. 
Camp asked since the inclinometers are two hundred feet below the ground, do we see 
anything happening there? 
Andrews stated nothing has moved for thirteen years. 
Richardson asked about the major road cuts and if there has been any movements since they 
have been built. 



 

Town of Silverthorne Town Council Meeting Minutes 

September 23, 2015 

Page 3 

Hopkins stated no, back in 2006 road cuts were put in and no movement has been detected.  
She reviewed the charged water lines on the site.  
Nadalin asked about the access to the park. 
Hopkins reviewed access to the Town Park and its parking. 
Richardson asked if the park would be a de defacto trailhead for Vendentte Creek.   
Hopkins reviewed trail access to the forest and parking.  
Richardson asked about accessibility to the trails after buildout.  He has concerns about the 
project entryway.  He would like to see a description of the roads down by the lake.  DOT 
stated there would be more traffic in Eagles Nest during this development’s construction, what 
is being done to control that.   
Hopkins stated more road detail will be included in the Final Site Plan.  The Final Site Plan will 
include more information about highway improvements. 
Richardson asked if there would be a median or a split highway, like at Eagles Nest.  Is there 
enough room to go North on the highway.  
Hopkins reviewed the entrance to the development.  There will be a left turn lane to head north 
and if you turn south there is an acceleration lane, it’s all included in Phase 1 development.  
They are doing everything they talked about in the past meetings to encourage main entrance 
usage.  She reviewed the staging of the development. 
Richardson asked if there is irrigation on the medians. 
Hopkins stated yes. 
Richardson asked if the Estate Lots are currently being sold. 
Hopkins stated they will not be sold until the second phase. 

Camp asked about the amount of asphalt on site.  
Hopkins reviewed the street and private drive widths.  
Richardson asked if conduit is being installed now so there wouldn’t have to be any road cuts 
later. 
Hopkins stated they are currently working with Excel on utility layout; they are running parallel 
live lines to avoid crossings.  
Durloo stated Xcel is currently working on the utilities plan and the other utilities follow suit.  
They are placing additional conduit at the intersections to avoid road cut issues later.  Comcast 
is going to provide service in this area.  
Richardson asked about cell phone reception in the area. 
Hopkins reviewed the cell phone coverage for the development.  SMCR has been tracking the 
cell phone providers and their proposed towers. 
No public comments, public hearing closed.  
Council comments 
Nadalin is uncomfortable with the Town taking over monitoring of the piezometer and 
inclinometer.  She would feel better if the developer had an engineering firm under contract to 
handle that.  She feels it is a developer responsibility not a Town responsibility.   
Gietzen stated the Town staff agrees, they don’t want to be involved with the monitoring and 
the developer agrees too. 
Council, staff and developer discussed the need for piezometer and inclinometers and if it is 
standard and equal application to all and how to handle requirements in the future.  
Neighboring developments don’t have similar monitoring.  Do we need to review our process in 
regards to monitoring?   There is a heightened awareness of landslides from incidences all 
over the USA.   
Richardson asked about ditch placement. 
Hopkins reviewed history of the area, the extensive drainage systems and ditch placement.  
What CGS is concerned about is making sure that protocols are followed. 



 

Town of Silverthorne Town Council Meeting Minutes 

September 23, 2015 

Page 4 

Camp feels the two hundred and forty two units are in keeping with way we have progressed 
outward as a Town.   
Long stated the only time she has seen land move is when there is too much irrigation.  Too 
much water is the culprit.  She asked staff for a site visit.  There are lots of details she wants to 
see personally.   
Butler agrees with other comments made. He is not concerned about the geology of the site.  
Are we asking this development to do something that we will ask other developments to do in 
the future? He appreciates the due diligence.  
 
CAMP MOVED TO APPROVE SOUTH MARYLAND CREEK RANCH APPLICATION FOR 
PRELIMINARY PLAN WITH THE FOLLOWING PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDED 
CONDITIONS:  
1. THE FOURTEEN (14) CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL SET FORTH IN THE LETTER FROM CGS 
DATED SEPTEMBER 10, 2015, SHALL BE MET PRIOR TO APPROVAL OF A FINAL PLAT. 
2. THE APPLICANT SHALL, FOLLOWING CONSTRUCTION OF THE PROPOSED MULTI-
PURPOSE PAVED TRAILS AND THE PUBLIC SOFT SURFACE TRAILS, DEDICATE THE 
APPROPRIATE TRAIL EASEMENTS TO THE TOWN AT FINAL PLAT. 
3. FINAL DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS (CC&RS) SHALL 
INCORPORATE THE REQUIRED CHANGES OUTLINED IN THIS STAFF REPORT, AND THOSE 
CALLED FOR IN THE LETTER FROM CGS DATED SEPTEMBER 10, 2015, AND BE PROVIDED TO 
THE TOWN WITH THE FIRST FINAL PLAT SUBMITTAL. 
4. ALL OF THE ‘ESTATE LOTS’ IN PLANNING AREA 1:A, IN ADDITION TO THE LOTS 
IDENTIFIED IN CONDITION #6 OF THE CGS LETTER DATED SEPTEMBER 10, 2015, SHALL 
CONTAIN DELINEATED BUILDING ENVELOPES AT THE TIME OF A FINAL PLAT SUBMITTAL. 

MOTION SECONDED.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY BY COUNCIL PRESENT. 
(SANDQUIST ABSENT) 
 
B. Ordinance 2015-12; an Ordinance Amending and Updating the Town of 

Silverthorne Destination Commercial District and Business Park District           
Design Standards and Guidelines – 2nd Reading 

Public hearing opened.  
Mark Leidal, Assistant Town Manager, presented Ordinance 2015-12 for Council’s 
consideration.  The amendment to the Destination Commercial District and Business Park 
District Design Standards updates the language and format, to introduce new standards and 
guidelines, and ensure consistency.  He reviewed the staff memo and requested approval.   
Council thanked Lina Lesmes for her efforts.   
Butler feels that the Business Park District might have too much dress in an industrial area. 
Public hearing closed.  
LONG MOVED TO APPROVE ORDINANCE 2015-12; AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 
CHAPTER 4, ARTICLE VI, SECTION 4-6-2(h), DESIGN DISTRICTS, TO AMEND AND 
UPDATE THE DESTINATION COMMERICAL DISTRICT AND BUSINESS PARK DISTRICT 
DESIGN STANDARDS AND GUIDELINES AND ADOPT THEM AS REGULATION ON 
SECOND READING.  MOTION SECONDED.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY BY 
COUNCIL PRESENT. (SANDQUIST ABSENT) 
  
DISCUSSION ITEMS: 
Long has read the Planning Commission minutes and asked if the Planning Commission has 
any questions or needs any guidance for the reconsideration of Angler Mountain Ranch Open 
Space Park. 



 

Town of Silverthorne Town Council Meeting Minutes 

September 23, 2015 

Page 5 

Leidal stated Planning Commission Chair, Bob Kieber has asked for a Public Hearing and a 
site plan visit.  He reviewed the site visit and process that will take place.  Mark Wilcox will 
present the project to Planning Commission.  They have all the information that they asked for.   
Leidal stated staff is concerned about getting full Planning Commission attendance at the 
meeting; some are not able to attend. 
Long asked if any of the Commissioners have had three absences.  
Staff was unable to report on attendance.  
Richardson asked what is the next step in the Design District Standards and Guidelines 
process. 
Leidal stated Town Core Rezoning and review of the Sign Code.  
Fowler asked about Sauce on the Blue’s liquor license and Angry James Brewery. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
None.  
 
INFORMATIONAL: 
A. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes, September 15, 2015 
B. July 2015 Sales Tax Review 
 
CAMP MOVED TO ADJOURN.  MOTION SECONDED.  MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:12 
P.M. 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
BRUCE BUTLER, MAYOR 
 

ATTEST 
_____________________________________ 
MICHELE MILLER, TOWN CLERK 

 
 
These minutes are only a summary of the proceedings of the meeting.  They are not intended to be comprehensive or to include each 
statement, person speaking or to portray with complete accuracy.  The most accurate record of the meeting is the videotape of the meeting, 
maintained in the office of the Town Clerk. 

 
 
 


